


























































Select Board Minutes       P a g e  1 | 4 
Apri l  23,  2024 
DRAFT 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 
Stow Town Building & Zoom 

 
Present in the Warren Room:  Cortni Frecha, Megan Birch-McMichael, Ingeborg Hegemann Clark, 
Hector Constantzos, John “JT” Toole, Town Administrator Denise Dembkoski, and Asst. Town 
Administrator Erin Mulcahy. 

Chair Frecha called the meeting to order at 7 p.m. 
 
Public Comment - none 
 
Board Member Comments 
Mr. Constantzos acknowledged that this is Ramadan Month for those who follow the Islam faith. 
Mr. Constantzos wished a Happy Passover to all who celebrate. 
 
Recognition 
Eagle Scouts – Maxwell Valentino and Ronan Wheeler 
The Boad reviewed certificates of achievement and letters of congratulation for Eagle Scouts Maxwell 
Valentino and Ronan Wheeler. 

Ms. Birch-McMichael will present the certificate and letter to Maxwell Valentino at his Court of Honor 
on Sunday, April 28. Mr. Valentino’s project, completed in the fall of 2023, was to build a footbridge in 
the Marble Hill Conservation Area. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to recognize Boy Scout Maxwell Valentino for achieving the rank of Eagle 
Scout, and to sign the letter and proclamation for his Court of Honor. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael and Mr. Toole hope to attend Ronan Wheeler’s Court of Honor on Saturday, May 
11, but it depends upon the conclusion of the Annual Town Meeting. Mr. Wheeler’s project, completed 
in May of 2023, was to build a boardwalk on the Red Trail in Stow Town Forest. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to recognize Boy Scout Ronan Wheeler for achieving the rank of Eagle 
Scout, and to sign the letter and proclamation for his Court of Honor. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Police Department – Incident on April 5, 2024 
Chief Sallese has written letters of commendation regarding the April 5, 2024 incident for: 
Lt. Kellie Barhight, Sgt. Cassandra Scott, Sgt. David Goguen, Det. Christopher Kusz, Det. John Fantasia, 
Officer Jon Butler, Officer Jeffrey Beckwith, Dispatch Supervisor Gabriel Lopez, Dispatcher Alex 
Beauchesne, Dispatcher Laurel Brazao, and Intern Olivia Kephart. 



Select Board Minutes       P a g e  2 | 4 
Apri l  23,  2024 
DRAFT 

Chief Sallese wanted the Board and those members of the Police Department to know how proud he is 
of them, stating that their actions and teamwork during this difficult situation involving a loss of life, 
which extended into the weekend and is still ongoing, were amazing and professional.  
 
Appointments 
Police Department – Olivia Kephart to the position of Patrol Officer 
Chief Sallese introduced Olivia Kephart, who is in the police program at Fitchburg State University and 
has been a police intern here for the past six months. Upon graduation from FSU, she will attend a 
condensed version of the police academy. Ms. Kephart said she is excited for the opportunity. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Olivia Kephart to the position of Patrol Officer for the Stow 
Police Department through June 30, 2025, pending satisfactory completion of the prerequisite physical 
and mental exams and a background check. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Fire Department – Apprentice Call Firefighters 
Fire Chief JP Benoit said there were 10 applicants and after an orientation and interviews there are 
four being presented for appointment. Once appointed, they will go through the department’s 10+ 
weeks of in-house training. Ms. Olejarz is also in the process of becoming an EMT. Appointments are 
through August, and upon successful completion of training Chief Benoit will recommend them to 
become Call Firefighters. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Bhaird Campbell to the position of Apprentice Call Firefighter 
for the Stow Fire Department through August 31, 2024. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Connor Caveney to the position of Apprentice Call Firefighter 
for the Stow Fire Department through August 31, 2024. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Cara Olejarz to the position of Apprentice Call Firefighter for 
the Stow Fire Department through August 31, 2024. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Brett Lifner to the position of Apprentice Call Firefighter for the 
Stow Fire Department through August 31, 2024. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Fire Department – Jose Gomez to the position of Call Firefighter/EMT 
Chief Benoit said that Jose Gomez is a resident of Stow and is a career firefighter in Framingham. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Jose Gomez to the position of Call Firefighter/EMT for the Stow 
Fire Department through June 30, 2025. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 



Select Board Minutes       P a g e  3 | 4 
Apri l  23,  2024 
DRAFT 

Town Administrator’s Report – Highlights included: 
• Due to low ridership, on Friday, May 3 the MART shuttle to and from the South Acton train station 

and the fixed shopping routes will be discontinued. Beginning Monday, May 6 there will be a new 
service for a nominal fee which requires a reservation made one weekday before. This is for 
destinations of the rider’s choice within 20 miles. The service is offered from 5:30a to 10:30p. 

• The Annual Town Meeting is Saturday, May 11 beginning at 9a at The Center School. Food and 
drink are allowed at this location. 

• Early in person voting for the Town election is Monday, May 13 from 9a-3p, and Tuesday, May 14 
and Wednesday, May 15 from 9a-7p in the Whitney Room on the first floor of Town Building. 

• The Lake Boon Dam Project is in the state permitting stage. It could take several months to 
complete, and if approval is received by the fall, work should start in early spring. 

• Fun fact: Globe magazine ranked the 36 top spots to live west of Boston. Stow is ranked #1 for 
homes valued between $750,000 and $1M. The article stated that houses in Stow fit a rural feel with 
mostly single-family homes on larger lots. Country charm can be had for a lower price than in nearby 
towns such as Sudbury and Concord. Bolton was second and Natick was third in this category. 

 
Special Event Permit – 9/11 Heroes Run at the American Heritage Museum 
Kerri Lannan, Event Manager, was present via Zoom. 
Ms. Lannan said this will be the second year that the 9/11 Heroes Run will be held in Stow. Ms. Lannan 
gave an overview of the non-profit Travis Manion Foundation (TMF). 1stLt Travis Manion, USMC, was 
fatally wounded on April 29, 2007 in Iraq. His family created the TMF to continue his legacy of duty and 
service to his country, and his “If not me, then who?” ethos. Among its projects, the TMF hosts retreats 
for current military, veteran, and Gold Star families, provides education sessions for students, and 
conducts community service projects. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to grant a permit to the Travis Manion Foundation for the TMF 9/11 
Heroes Run on Saturday, September 7, 2024 from 9:30 AM until 11:30 AM at the American Heritage 
Museum, provided the organizers contact the Fire Department with a detail request in advance of the 
event date and all requirements are met. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
2024 Annual Town Meeting Warrant 
Ms. Dembkoski reviewed the changes that have been made to the draft of the warrant. It was 
suggested that Mr. Toole recuse himself from the discussion on the budget. Although they did not 
formally vote to support any of the articles, the Board will make a statement on Town Meeting floor 
regarding article 4, the General Budget for Fiscal Year 2025:  
“The Select Board is impressed with the collaboration of the departments with the Town Administrator 
and the Town Administrator’s guidance in developing this budget.” 

Mr. Toole recused himself from the vote on the Annual Town Meeting Warrant. 
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to approve the 2024 Annual Town Meeting Warrant as presented at this 
meeting. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously 4-0. 



Select Board Minutes       P a g e  4 | 4 
Apri l  23,  2024 
DRAFT 

Layout of Joanne Drive as a Public Way 
The Planning Board voted to recommend the Select Board lay out Joanne Drive as a public way and 
made some recommendations regarding the street acceptance. Ms. Dembkoski noted that this is not a 
town-initiated action; the developer requested this acceptance and therefore has incentive to get the 
items addressed.  
 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved that the Select Board of the Town of Stow, pursuant to G.L. c. 82, §§21-24, 
votes to approve the laying out of Joanne Drive as a public way as shown on the plan presented at this 
meeting. The boundaries of the layout of Joanne Drive are shown on a plan entitled “Definitive 
Subdivision Plan, Joanne Drive, A Planned Conservation Development, Stow, Massachusetts,” dated 
August 4, 2017, prepared by Stamski and McNary, Inc., and recorded with the Middlesex South District 
Registry of Deeds as Plan 195 of 2020, which plan was referred to the Planning Board and which plan is 
hereby adopted as a part of this Order, and all land lying within the layout of Joanne Drive is hereby laid 
out as a public way. 
Further, Ms. Birch-McMichael moved that the aforementioned plan be forwarded to the Town Clerk for 
filing and the foregoing layout be reported to the Town for acceptance at Town Meeting, provided that: 

o the Tree Warden review the health of the street trees, including shrubs installed in lieu of tree 
plantings and recommend any needed replacement; 

o All catch basins shall be cleaned out by the Applicant prior to the May 2024 Town Meeting; 
o the Applicant should provide confirmation from the Treasurer that any property taxes owed to the 

Town have been paid; 
o and the Highway, Police, and Fire Departments should be asked for any comments related to the 

proposed acceptance of Joanne Drive. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion. 
Discussion ensued about an amendment to the Order of Layout that the Board is to sign. The last 
sentence was amended to add “based on the motion of the April 23, 2024 meeting.” 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Meeting Minutes 
Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to accept the meeting minutes of the April 9, 2024 meeting as drafted. 
Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Board Correspondence & Updates 
Mr. Constantzos said that the public outreach deadline for the Comprehensive Plan has been extended 
to May 20, which allows for an additional two weeks to receive feedback. 
 
Adjournment 
At 8:08 p.m. Ms. Birch-McMichael moved to adjourn. Mr. Constantzos seconded the motion and it 
passed unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Joyce Sampson,  Executive Assistant 

Documents used:  Documents can be found in the Select Board Office in the meeting folder. 


